

South Pasadena Public Library BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES December 10, 2020

CONVENE:

President Bianca Richards called the regular meeting of the Library Board of Trustees of the South Pasadena Public Library to order, virtually via Zoom, on December 10, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.

IN ATTENDANCE: <u>Trustees Present</u> <u>Also Present</u>

Debra Beadle
Annie Chang

Cathy Billings, Library Director
Sean Faye, Administrative Secretary

Joseph M. Molina Bianca Richards David Uwins

PRESENTATIONS:

1. None

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

2. None

ACTION ITEMS:

3. Review and approve draft minutes of the regular meeting held November 12, 2020

Motion by Library Board Vice President David Uwins, seconded by Library Board Trustee Debra Beadle, to approve the minutes as written for the regular meeting of the Library Board of Trustees held November 12, 2020.

AYES: Beadle, Chang, Molina, Richards, Uwins

NOES: None ABSENT: None ABSTAIN: None

4. Request for Approval of Library Board of Trustees Annual Report (2020)

Motion by Library Board Trustee Joseph M. Molina, seconded by Library Board Vice President David Uwins, to approve the Library Board of Trustees Annual Report (2020).

AYES: Beadle, Chang, Molina, Richards, Uwins

NOES: None ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

5. 2021 Library Board of Trustees Work Plan

The 2021 Library Board of Trustees Work Plan has 4 objectives: to update the Library Administrative Policies and Library Board of Trustees manuals, to update the Library's Emergency Plan and procedures, to evaluate the State Education Code and the South Pasadena Municipal Code to confirm the ordinance reflects the work of the Library Board of Trustees, and to prepare for the Library's next Strategic Plan.

The Library's Emergency Plan should include guidance and procedures for pandemics and other catastrophes.

This will be an Action Item for the 1/14/21 Trustees meeting.

6. Library Operations Update

All 10 Library Aide positions are filled. Library Director Cathy Billings will advocate for the vacant Assistant Library Director to remain with the intent that in the future it will be possible to convert it to a non-manager full time position focused on systems and technology.

The Library's statistics for FY 19/20 have been submitted to the California State Library. All public libraries are required to submit data, and once compiled the result is a useful tool that enables libraries to compare data with other libraries across the state.

The mobile app is very close to being launched. Digital Services Librarian Cynthia Mitchem has been phenomenal in helping to configure it.

The Library reduced its magazine subscriptions from 124 to 68. This can be revisited at any time if there is a demand from the public.

In an effort to reduce expenses, the Library is discontinuing a number of digital resources that either get little use or are duplicative of other digital resources. In some cases, the State Library is now providing the resource for free. State provided products include a resource for job seekers and resources for kids and general reference. The Library will participate in a pilot program for a product from SirsiDynix, the Library's integrated library system (ILS), which makes open access research articles from a wide variety of publications available in the library catalog. The Friends pay for Mango Languages, Ancestry.com, Comics Plus, and RB Digital Magazines. RB Digital Magazines has been purchased by the eBook platform OverDrive and will be retired. The OverDrive digital magazine product is too expensive, so the Library will be without a digital magazine platform for the near future. The Library's website will provide patrons information about alternatives to the discontinued resources. The overall savings from these significant reductions is nearly \$20K.

The Library's social media reach outreach includes 1,242 followers on Facebook, 654 followers on Instagram, 59 subscribers on the Library's YouTube channel, and 3,041 subscribers on Constant Contact. There have been close to 4,000 views of Library programs on YouTube and 1,295 views of Storytime programs.

The Library's updated "fine free" staff report and implementation plan are on the 12/16/2020 City Council agenda. The Library has not charged fines since mid-March. Publicity will be forthcoming if approved by City Council. Targeted outreach will be conducted for patrons with outstanding materials. SirsiDynix has a fine-free consulting service to assist with the transition.

Local History Librarian Olivia Radbill finished processing the collections purchased from Rick Thomas and has published the Finding Aid on the Local History Collection webpage. These materials will soon be digitized.

The City is still operating with a continued appropriations budget from FY 19-20. The Finance Department is working on a final FY 20-21 budget for Council approval. Because of this, each department has been spending conservatively. The Library has been using the reduced budget originally proposed by our department as a guide. That same proposal, with a few small adjustments has been re-submitted to Finance. Adjustments include an increase in the Building Maintenance account to cover COVID-19-related expenses. The Part Time budget remains on track.

The Library's new contract for CENIC Wi-Fi services is currently in the bidding process. The Library contracts for these services through the library consortium CALIFA. The new contract is expected to be a 35% reduction in annual costs compared to the current contract.

A drinking fountain with a bottle-filling station has been installed in front of the Library. In January, the Library will have similar drinking fountains installed inside the building. Staff spoke with Public Works about the possibility of trimming the trees in front of the Community Room on El Centro Street so that the façade of the historic landmark can be better seen. The contract for the Library's Emergency Lighting system has been signed and Public Works is finalizing the details with the vendor. A request for funding for shelving to be located across from the Service Desk has been included in the Library's proposed budget.

The Library is following the protocols issued from LA County, as the number of COVID-19 cases remain high. The Library will not allow the public to gather in the building. The technical aspect of setting up the public computers by appointment is ready, but staff need to develop and put processes and procedures in place before the computers can be made available. This will be revisited in January.

The City will be offering holiday gift cards and a raffle of prizes for staff, instead of hosting its annual Holiday Luncheon.

7. Emergency Plan Update and OSHA Compliance

The Library's last Emergency Plan was developed in 2011 and needs to be updated. The City has formed an intra-departmental Safety Committee that meets once a month. Administrative Secretary Sean Faye is the Library's representative. The Safety Committee's goal is to produce an updated City-Wide Safety Manual.

Each City facility will be inspected twice a year. A safety component will be added for new hire orientation. In-person trainings will be scheduled once the COVID restrictions are lifted. The Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP), which includes information about who maintains authority and responsibility in an emergency, compliance issues, communication protocols, hazard assessment, and accident investigation, will be updated along with evacuation procedures.

The Library's three emergency kits in the Library have been brought up to date. The Library will not wait for the City-Wide Safety Manual to begin updating its own plan and procedures, including re-instituting regular staff walk-throughs of the building.

COMMUNICATIONS:

8. Board President (Bianca Richards):

President Bianca Richards thanked Trustee Debra Beadle for her service on the Library Board of Trustees.

9. Board Members:

Trustee Annie Chang expressed interest in demonstrating appreciation for Library staff in some capacity for the holidays. Director Billings said she would help coordinate, in accordance with the Brown Act.

10. <u>Friends of the Library Representative (Library Director Cathy Billings on behalf of Friends</u> President Ellen Torres):

- The Friends Emergency Fund raised over \$13,000.
- "Ellen's Giving Tuesday for the Friends" on Facebook raised \$1,445 from 30 donors. Friends Board President Ellen Torres thanked Ed Donnelly for sharing to the 91030 group page, which was responsible for nearly half of the donations.
- Andy Lippman wrote an article for the *South Pasadena Review* about the struggle to raise funds faced by local non-profits during the pandemic that featured the Friends.
- The restructuring of Friends Bylaws and job descriptions should be finalized in December. It will be voted on at their annual meeting in January.
- The Friends' proposed budget for 2021 will also be presented for approval at the annual meeting in January.
- The nominating committee will present the slate of officers to be voted on the annual meeting in January.
- The Friends Membership campaign for 2021 is underway and letters will be mailed next week.
- The Friends voted to approve the Restoration Concert Committee to present two recorded concerts on the Friends' YouTube channel. Rehearsals and video recording will take place in the Library Community Room on dates to be decided based on the County's Public Health order. There will be no live audience.
- The Friends Bookstore will remain closed with no clear date as to when it may reopen.
- 11. Trustee Liaison to Friends (Bianca Richards on behalf of David Uwins): None to report.
- 12. <u>Library Director (Cathy Billings):</u> None to report.

NEW BUSINESS:

NEXT MEETING: The next regular meeting of the Library Board of Trustees will be on Thursday, January 14, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. via Zoom.

ADJOURNMENT: President Blanca Richards adjourned the regular meeting of the Library Board of	
Trustees on December 10 (2020) at 8:23 p.m.	
Minutes approvedas written.	
Minutes approvedas corrected.	
Bianca Richards, President	1/14/2021
President	Date